RFQ: #24-023 RR

RFP TITLE: Supplemental – Translation & Interpretation Services

NIGP Commodity Code: 96175

RFP Schedule

D-4- 0 T:---

A - 4° - --

Action	Date & Time
RFP Issued	09/06/2023
READ ALL DOCUMENTS: Offerors must familiarize the	
mandatory that all submitted offers be in compliance with a	
Offerors should promptly notify the Buyer of any ambiguity	y, inconsistency, error, or missing attachments which they
may discover upon examination of the RFP.	
Deadline for Questions	09/13/2023 @ 5:00pm (local time)
RFP Due Date and Time	09/26/2023 @ 3:00pm (local time)
Proposals must be received by the due date and time. I	No late proposals will be accepted. The only acceptable
evidence to establish the time of receipt is the date/time	stamp from electronic bidding system (Vendor Registry.
Evaluation of Proposals	TBD
Contract Negotiations	TBD

RFP Buyer Contact Information

Name	Robert Russell
Phone Number	(505) 878-6123
E-Mail	Russell_R@aps.edu
Any inquiries or requests regarding clarification of this R	RFP document shall be submitted to the buyer in writing.

Any inquiries or requests regarding clarification of this RFP document shall be submitted to the buyer in writing. Offerors may contact ONLY the buyer regarding the terminology stated in the procurement documents. Any other communication will be considered unofficial and non-binding.

RFP Submittal

Proposals must be submitted electronically via electronic bidding system (Vendor Registry) by required date and time as noted on RFP document.

 $\underline{https://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/Vendor/Register/Index/albuquerque-public-schools-nm-vendor-registration}$

Offerors understand and agree that technical support may not be readily available the day of and or the hours/minutes prior to due date and time. Offerors also understand and agree that internet access, browsers, and operating systems are not supported by the District and/or its agents. Offerors are strongly encouraged to

review, create, and submit all electronic RFP responses several days in advance of the due date and time.

RFP Term

Albuquerque Public Schools reserves the right to enter into a four (4) year contract with the awarded Offeror(s).

TABLE OF CONTENTS

TABLE OF CONTENTS	PAGE #
OFFEROR'S GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS	3
TERMS AND CONDITIONS	8
PROTESTS	19
OVERVIEW	20
RFP SCHEDULE	22
SCOPE OF WORK	22
EVALUATION CRITERIA	29
SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS	31
FORMS AND ATTACHMENTS	33
PROPOSAL CHECKLIST	41
FORM A – PROFESSIONAL INFORMATION	
FORM B – COST DETAIL	
FORM C – CONTRACTORS CODE OF ETHICS	
CONTRACTORS MANUAL 2022 UPDATE	

OFFEROR'S GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS

- 1. **READ ALL DOCUMENTS:** Offerors must familiarize themselves with all documents contained herein; it is mandatory that all submitted offers be in compliance with all the provisions contained in the Request for Proposal. Offerors should promptly notify the Buyer of any ambiguity, inconsistency, error, or missing attachments which they may discover upon examination of the RFP.
- 2. <u>CONE OF SILENCE:</u> APS has adopted a "Cone of Silence" to enforce its commitment to ethical procurement standards and improve accountability and public confidence. The Code of Silence prohibits any communication regarding a competitive procurement solicitation between any person who seeks an award from the District, including potential vendors or vendor's representative and APS Board Members, the Superintendent, senior staff members, principals, department heads, directors, managers or other District representative who have influence in the evaluation or selection process.
- 3. <u>OFFICIAL CONTACT:</u> Offerors may contact **ONLY** the Buyer regarding the terminology stated in the procurement documents. Other APS employees do not have the authority to respond on behalf of APS.
 - Offerors **MAY NOT** contact other APS departments, employees or the evaluation committee. Any contact with an APS department, employee or evaluation committee member may result in rejection of any proposal.
 - Any other verbal communication will be deemed unofficial and non-binding. Communication directed to parties other than the Buyer will have no legal bearing on this RFP or the resulting contract(s). Any response made by APS will be provided in writing to all Offerors by addendum; no verbal responses shall be authoritative.
- 4. WRITTEN QUESTIONS: Potential Offerors may submit written questions to the Buyer as to the intent or clarity of this RFP. All written questions must be addressed and submitted to the Buyer NO LATER than the date and time specified in this RFP. All times are subject to the local time zone. The Buyer will respond in a timely manner subject to the complexity of the questions. Buyer will ONLY respond to the written questions submitted and receive on or prior to the deadline in this RFP.
- 5. <u>SUBMISSION:</u> The submission of a proposal constitutes a representation by the Offeror that the Offeror has made all appropriate examinations, investigations, and analysis and has made provision as to the cost thereof in submitted proposal. By responding to this RFP, Offerors acknowledge and agree to the terms and conditions set form in this RFP.
- 6. <u>ELECTRONIC RFP DOCUMENTS:</u> This RFP is being made available by electronic means. In the event of conflict between a version of the RFP in the Offeror's possession and the version maintained by APS, the Offeror acknowledges that the version maintained by APS on the APS procurement website shall govern.
- 7. <u>INCURRING COSTS:</u> Any cost incurred by the potential Offeror in preparation, transmittal, and/or presentation of any proposal or material submitted in response to this RFP shall be borne solely by the Offeror. If applicable, any cost incurred by the Offeror for set up and demonstration of the proposed equipment and/or system shall be borne solely by the Offeror.
- 8. <u>PUBLIC RECORDS ACT:</u> Albuquerque Public Schools is a governmental entity subject to the State of New Mexico Inspection of Public Records Act (IPRA). Proposals submitted to APS as a result of a formal procurement solicitation are subject to release as a public information request. If an Offeror believes that its response or parts of its response may be exempted from disclosure under New Mexico law, the Offeror

- may mark the pages "confidential" for consideration to exemption. APS reserves the sole right to determine exemptions.
- 9. **PROPOSAL OFFER FIRM:** Responses to this RFP, including proposal prices for services, will be considered firm for one hundred twenty (120) days after due date. If a best and final offer is requested, the offer is good for ninety (90) days after receipt of best and final offer.
- 10. <u>FORMS AND ATTACHMENTS:</u> It is the responsibility of every Offeror to ensure they have downloaded the latest version of each RFP, including any addendum(s) which may have been issued and posted on the APS Procurement Department Website.
- 11. <u>ADDENDUM(S)</u>: No Addendum will be issued later than FIVE (5) days prior to the date for receipt of proposals, except an Addendum withdrawing the RFP or one which extends the date for receipt of proposals.
 - Offerors should revisit the website (http://www.aps.edu/procurement), then select, "See Current Bids and RFPs") prior to the due date before submitting their proposal to Albuquerque Public Schools. All addendums must be acknowledged in the submitted proposal.
- 12. **CORRECTIONS:** Corrections shall be initialed in ink by the Offeror signing the proposal. Offerors will be allowed to withdraw their proposals at any time prior to the deadline for receipt of proposals. The Offeror must submit a written withdrawal request to withdraw their proposal. The approval or denial of withdrawal requests received after the deadline for receipt of the proposals is governed by the applicable procurement regulations.
- 13. **EXCEPTIONS:** Any exceptions to the scope of work and/or specifications shall be listed separately in the submitted proposal and unless otherwise stated, specifications and/or scope of work attached are the minimum requirements. Minor deviations to the specifications as listed, may be considered.
 - The Buyer, after review of the proposals may request clarifications on information submitted by any and all Offerors in a written format, with a specified deadline for response.
- 14. **<u>DISTRICT DISCRETION</u>**: The District hereafter referred to as APS reserves the right, pursuant NMSA 1978, §13-1-132, in its sole discretion to waive minor informalities in proposals submitted provided that such informalities have no effect on price, quality, quantity or any matter to be evaluated in making a selection and confer no material advantage on the Offeror whose nonconformity is waived. APS reserves the right to add to or delete from the Scope of Work set forth in this RFP.
- 15. **BRAND NAMES:** Pursuant to NMSA 1978, §13-1-168, where a brand-name or equal specification is used in a solicitation, the use of a brand name is for the purpose of describing the standard of quality, performance and characteristics desired and is not intended to limit or restrict competition pursuant to NMSA 1978 §13-1-168. If a vendor proposes an "equal" to scope of work/specifications, APS is the sole interpreter of the scope of work/specifications and sole judge as to whether the "equal" proposed complies with the scope of work/specifications
- 16. **OFFEROR QUALIFICATIONS:** The Evaluation Committee may make such investigations as necessary to determine the ability of the potential Offeror to adhere to the requirement specified within this RFP. The Evaluation Committee may reject the proposal of any potential Offeror who is deemed not to be a responsible Offeror or fails to submit a responsive offer as defined in NMSA 1978, §13-1-83 and §13-1-85.
- 17. **AWARD:** APS reserves the right to award all, part or none of the Scope of Work set forth in this RFP. This procurement in no manner obligates Albuquerque Public Schools until a valid signed contract and/or valid Purchase Order is executed.

18. PREFERENCES: RFPs may be awarded preference in compliance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-21 for New Mexico In-State Resident Business or Native America Resident Business or Resident Veteran Business or Native American Resident Veteran Business. Offerors shall include in their proposal a copy of the certificate issued by State of New Mexico Taxation & Revenue. If Proposal is Joint Venture, Offeror shall state in submitted offer the percentage of work that will be performed by Resident Business and/or Resident Veteran Business.

PLEASE NOTE: An Offeror cannot be awarded multiple preferences such as resident preference and a resident veteran business preference. The New Mexico Preferences shall not apply when the expenditures for this RFP includes federal funds.

19. **TIMELY SUBMISSIONS:** All Offeror proposals must be received for review and evaluation no later than the time and date specified in this RFP.

<u>Important Information:</u> Albuquerque Public Schools Online Bidding System (Vendor Registry) utilizes the Internet and the World Wide Web which is comprised of systems that are completely out APS's control including but not limited to: the District, its agents, and registered suppliers' respective internet service providers. The District and its agents are not responsible for Internet outages, hardware failures, software failures, downtime, internet slowness, acts of God, power failures, and or user errors. All proposals must be submitted before the due date regardless of your organization's ability to submit proposals online. It is the suppliers' responsibility to ensure that RFP offers arrive before the due date and time.

Proposers understand and agree that technical support may not be readily available the day of and or the hours/minutes prior to a bid closing time (Due Date/Time). Proposers also understand and agree that internet access, browsers, and operating systems are not supported by the District and/or its agents.

Suppliers are strongly encouraged to review, create, and submit all electronic RFP responses several days in advance of the due date and time. If you have any questions contact the Buyer listed on the RFP documents for assistance.

- 20. **EXTEND SUBMISSION TIME:** APS may in its sole discretion extend the time for the submission of bids upon a finding that it is in the interest of APS to do so. Such extensions shall be by addendum(s), which may be issued before or on the submission due date.
- 21. <u>RFP CANCELLATION OR REJECTION:</u> In accordance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-131, this RFP may be canceled or proposals may be rejected in whole or in part when it is in the best interest of Albuquerque Public Schools.
- 22. **RFP OPENING:** Submitted proposals shall not be publicly opened. The contents of the proposals shall not be disclosed during any negotiations that may occur. A public log will be kept of the names of all Offeror organizations that submitted proposals. Pursuant to NMSA 1978, §13-1-116, the contents of proposals shall not be disclosed to competing potential Offerors during the negotiation process. The negotiation process is deemed to be in effect until the contract is awarded pursuant to this Request for Proposals. Awarded in this context means the final required APS signature on the contract(s) resulting from the procurement has been obtained.
- 23. **RESPONSIBLE AND RESPONSIVE OFFER:** APS may reject the proposal of any potential Offeror who is not a responsible Offeror or fails to submit a responsive offer as defined in NMSA 1978, §13-1-83 and §13-1-85.
- 24. **SOLE RESPONSE:** Any sole response that is received may be rejected by APS depending on available competition and timely needs of APS. APS reserves the right to award the contract to the responsible

Offeror submitted responsive proposals most advantageous and in the best interest of APS.

- 25. **NEGOTIATIONS:** APS reserves the right to discontinue negotiations with any Offeror.
- 26. <u>MULTI-AWARD</u>: APS reserves the right to multi-award contracts as necessary for adequate delivery or service in accordance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-153.
- 27. **AFTER AWARD:** After final contract is negotiated, approved and awarded, all proposal documents pertaining to this procurement will be open to the public, except for the material, which is proprietary or confidential.

The Procurement Department might not disclose or make public any pages of a proposal on which the Offeror has stamped or imprinted "**Proprietary**" or "**Confidential**" subject to the following requirements.

Proprietary or confidential data shall be readily separable from the proposal in order to facilitate eventual public inspection of the non-confidential portion of the proposal. Confidential data is normally restricted to confidential financial information concerning the Offeror's organization and data that qualifies as trade secret in accordance with the Uniform Trade Act, NMSA 1978, §57-3A-7. The price of products offered or the cost of services proposed shall not be designated as proprietary or confidential information.

- 28. **APS SCHOOL BOARD APPROVAL:** The award of this contract is not final until approved by the APS School Board (if applicable) and/or contract is signed by both parties.
- 29. **<u>DEFINITIONS</u>**: Definition of Terminology: This section contains definitions that are used throughout this procurement document, including appropriate abbreviations.
 - "Agency" shall mean Albuquerque Public Schools (APS)
 - "Award of Contract" shall mean a formal written notice by APS that a firm(s) has/have been selected to enter into a contract for services.
 - "Contract" shall mean an agreement for the procurement of items of tangible personal property or services.
 - "Contractor" shall mean the successful Offeror.
 - "**Determination**" shall mean the written documentation of a decision of a procurement manager including findings of fact required to support a decision. A determination becomes part of the procurement file to which it pertains.
 - "Desirable" the terms "may", "can", "should", or "prefers" identify a desirable or discretionary item or factor.
 - "Evaluation Committee" shall mean a body constituted to evaluate proposals and make selection recommendation.
 - "Finalist" is defined as an Offeror who meets all the mandatory specifications of the RFP and whose score on evaluation factors is sufficiently high to qualify that Offeror for further consideration by the Evaluation Committee.
 - "Mandatory" the terms "must", "shall", "will", "is required", or "are required", identify a mandatory item or factor. Failure to meet a mandatory item or factor will result in the rejection of the Bidder's bid.
 - "Offer" the term means "proposal", "solution", means all documents submitted to APS responding to RFP.
 - "Offeror", "Bidder", or "Proposer" is any person, corporation, or partnership who chooses to submit a proposal in response to this RFP.

- "Owner" shall be Albuquerque Public Schools.
- "Purchase Order" shall mean the document, which directs a Contractor to deliver items of tangible personal property or services pursuant to an existing contract.
- "Request for Proposal" or "RFP" means all documents, including those attached or incorporated by reference, used for soliciting proposals.
- "Responsible Offeror" shall mean an Offeror who submits a responsive bid and who has furnished, when required, information and data to prove that its financial resources, production or service facilities, personnel, service reputation and experience are adequate to make satisfactory delivery of the services or items of tangible property described in the RFP.
- "Responsive Offer" or "Responsive Proposal" shall mean a bid, which conforms in all material respects to the requirements set forth in the RFP.

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

- 1. <u>APPLICABILITY:</u> These terms and conditions are applicable and form a part of the resulting contract documents, and each purchase order issued for good and/or services included in the scope of work and proposal forms issued herewith.
- 2. <u>TERM:</u> APS reserves the right to procure the services/goods as described in this RFP and enter into a contract as described on RFP front cover.
- 3. <u>REQUEST(S) NOT DEFINED IN SCOPE OF WORK</u>: Contractor shall be held responsible to NOT fill requests which are clearly beyond the defined scope of this contract. Should such requests occur, Contractor has the responsibility of calling such violations to the attention of the APS Procurement Officer.
- 4. <u>ASSIGNMENT:</u> It is mutually understood and agreed that the successful Offeror(s) shall not assign, transfer, convey, sublet or otherwise dispose of the purchase order, contract, or his/her right, title of interest therein, or power to execute such purchase order or contract to any other person, company or corporation without the previous written consent of APS.
- 5. **NO MINIMUM GUARANTEE:** Albuquerque Public Schools does not guarantee a minimum amount of purchases in conjunction with award of this request for proposals.
- 6. <u>PURCHASE ORDER REQUIRED</u>: A purchase order commitment represents an obligation to pay a vendor for future delivery of goods and/or services. No payments will be made for work performed or goods delivered before a Purchase Order is issued by APS Purchasing Department. Vendors who commence work before they have received a valid purchase order do so at their own risk and payment is not guaranteed. Purchase Orders are issued by APS and submitted electronically to the vendor by email.
- 7. <u>PRICING ESCALATION (if applicable)</u>: Price escalation may be considered only at yearly observance of award (anniversary date) and only upon receipt of written request from Contractor stating reason(s) for escalation and the amount being requested. Justifying documentation MUST accompany price escalation request.
- 8. <u>TAXES</u>: APS holds a Class 9 Nontaxable Transaction Certificate and is exempt from payment of taxes on tangible personal property. A NTTC will be issued upon request.
- 9. **NON-APPROPRIATION:** APS' obligation to make payment under the terms of this RFP is contingent upon its appropriation of sufficient funds to make those payments. If APS does not appropriate funds for the continuation of this procurement, this procurement will terminate upon written notice of that effect to the Contractor. APS determination that sufficient funds have not been appropriated is firm, binding and not subject to review.
- 10. **PROCUREMENT CODE:** The Procurement Code, NMSA 1978, §13-1-28 through §13-1-199, imposes civil and misdemeanor criminal penalties for its violation. In addition, the New Mexico Criminal Statutes impose felony penalties for bribes, gratuities, and kickbacks.
- 11. PROCUREMENT UNDER EXISTING CONTRACTS: In accordance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-129, Offerors are hereby notified that other governmental entities within the State of New Mexico, or as otherwise allowed by their respective governing directives, may contract for services with the awarded Offeror. Contractual engagements accomplished under this provision shall be solely between the awarded Offeror and the contracting entity with no obligation by Albuquerque Public Schools
- 12. **TERMINATION:** Either party may terminate this contract as follows:
 - A. Termination by the Contractor

- 1. The Contractor may terminate this contract **only** if Albuquerque Public School District fails to comply with any provisions of this contract and after receiving notice of the noncompliance APS fails to cure the noncompliance within ten (10) days, or
- 2. By written mutual agreement between the Contractor and APS.

B. Termination by APS

- 1. For Cause
 - a. The occurrence of either one of the following events will justify termination for cause:
 - i. Contractor's persistent failure to perform the work in accordance with the contract documents (including but not limited to, failure to supply sufficient skilled workers or suitable materials or equipment).
 - ii. Contractor's violation in any substantial way of any provisions of this contract.
 - b. If either one of the events identified above occur, APS may, after giving Contractor (and the surety, if any) ten (10) days written notice, terminate the service of Contractor, exclude Contractor from site, and take possession of the work. Contractor shall be paid for project costs incurred up to the date of termination but shall not be paid for loss of profits resulting from such termination.
 - c. Where Contractor's services have been so terminated by APS, the termination will not affect any rights or remedies of APS against Contractor then existing or which may thereafter accrue. Any retention or payment of moneys due the Contractor by APS will not release the Contractor from liability.

2. For Convenience

- a. Upon ten (10) days written notice to Contractor, APS may without cause and without prejudice to any other right or remedy of APS, elect to terminate the contract.
- b. In such case, Contractor shall be paid (without duplication of any items):
 - i. For completed and acceptable work executed in accordance with the contract documents prior to the effective date of termination.
 - ii. For expenses sustained prior to the effective date of termination in performing services and furnishing labor, materials or equipment as required by the contract document in connection with uncompleted work.
- c. Contractor shall not be paid on account of loss of anticipated profits or revenue or other economic loss arising out of or resulting from such termination.
- 13. **INDEMNIFICATION:** The Offeror shall be responsible for damage to persons or property that occurs as a result of Offeror's fault or negligence, or that of any of his/her employees, agents or subcontractors. Offeror shall save and hold harmless Albuquerque Public Schools against any and all losses, cost, damage, claims, expenses or liability in connection with the performance of the contract. Any equipment or facilities damaged by the Offeror's operation shall be repaired and/or restored to their original condition at the Offeror's expense.
- 14. <u>INSURANCE:</u> The successful Offeror shall purchase and maintain statutory limits of Worker's Compensation, Public Liability and Automobile Liability Insurance approved by APS at the time of contract award. Albuquerque Public Schools shall be included as a loss payee and/or additional insured. Public Liability and Automobile Liability insurance shall include at least the following coverage:

General Liability Insurance – per occurrence	\$1,000,000
General Aggregate - \$2,000,000	
Product/completed operations aggregate \$1,000,000	
Professional Liability Insurance (E&O)-per occurrence	\$2,000,000
Professional Aggregate - \$2,000,000	
Bodily injury, per occurrence	\$1,000,000
Medical and medically-related expenses	\$10,000
Vehicle bodily injury, each occurrence, excluding medical and medically	\$750,000
related expenses	
Property Damage, per occurrence	\$1,000,000
Worker's Compensation and Employers Liability	\$1,000,000

Contractor shall furnish Owner with certificates of insurance with the contract documents and prior to the commencement of work.

NOTE: Certificate holder shall be: Board of Education

Albuquerque Public Schools

Certificate of Insurance forwarded to: Albuquerque Public Schools- Procurement Department

P.O. Box 25704

Albuquerque, New Mexico 87125

- 15. <u>AUDIT:</u> APS reserves the right to audit the Contractor's records associated with this contract at any time during the contract period and for a period of up to three years following the expiration or termination of the agreement. Such audit may be conducted by APS personnel or a third party under contract with APS. APS shall give the Contractor reasonable notice prior to the conduct of any audit and upon receiving the notice from APS the Contractor agrees to fully cooperate with the auditors. If Contractor subcontracts any portion of its obligation to another party, Contractor shall guarantee APS' access to books and records of such party.
- 16. **GOVERNING LAW:** This RFP and any contract with an Offeror which may result from this procurement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Mexico.
- 17. **INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR:** The Contractor is an independent contractor performing services for APS. The Contractor shall not accrue leave, retirement, insurance, or any other benefits afforded to employees of APS as a result of this procurement.
- 18. **<u>DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION:</u>** A business (Contractor, Subcontractor or Supplier) that has either been debarred or suspended pursuant to the requirements of NMSA 1978, §13-1-177 through §13-1-180, and §13-4-11 through §13-4-17 as amended, shall not be permitted to do business with APS and shall not be considered for award of the contract during the period for which it is debarred or suspended with APS.
- 19. **CONFLICT OF INTEREST:** By submitting a proposal, the Offeror certifies that no relationship exists between the Offeror and APS that interferes with fair competition or is a conflict of interest; and no relationship exists between such propose and another person or firm that constitutes a conflict of interest that is adverse to APS.
- 20. **NON-DISCLOSURE:** The Offeror shall not disclose any information relating to students, and employees of APS other than such information that may be authorized by the individual student or employee. Vendor

- agrees to indemnify and hold harmless APS from any damages, claims, liabilities, and costs including reasonable attorney fees in the event any unauthorized release of such information occurs.
- 21. **<u>DELIVERY</u>**: The goods shall be delivered free of the rightful claim of any third person, any security interest or other lien. Unless otherwise agreed all goods called for in this RFP shall be tendered in a single delivery and payment is due only upon such delivery (NET 30).
- 22. <u>FOB</u>: Unless stated otherwise, the price for goods is FOB: Destination (APS' designated address). Proposal prices shall include all freight and delivery charges.
- 23. **<u>DELAYS IN DELIVERY</u>**: Time is of the essence and this purchase may be subject to termination for failure to deliver on time, unless delay was caused by APS. If delay in delivery is foreseen, Seller must notify the APS Requesting Department of late delivery, cause of late delivery and remedy for late delivery.
- 24. <u>INSPECTION</u>: Final inspection will be made at the destination upon completion of delivery of goods/services. Final inspection shall include any testing or inspection procedures required by the specifications.
- 25. <u>ACCEPTANCE</u>: Acceptance of delivery of goods/services shall not be considered acceptance of the goods/services furnished. Acceptance occurs when the Requesting Department, after a reasonable opportunity to inspect the goods/services, signifies to the seller that are goods/services are conforming and fails to make an effective rejection.
- 26. <u>BUYERS REVOCATION OF ACCEPTANCE</u>: Requesting Department can revoke acceptance of goods when it is discovered, in a reasonable time, that the Sellers nonconforming goods substantially impair the value of the goods.
- 27. <u>SELLERS RIGHT TO CURE A NONCONFORMING DELIVERY OF GOODS</u>: The Seller, upon notice of revocation of acceptance, shall correct without charge and deliver conforming goods in a reasonable time.
- 28. <u>INVOICES:</u> Vendor shall submit invoices directly to APS Accounts Payable, unless otherwise instructed. Invoices may be sent to accounts.payable@aps.edu. Each invoice shall include APS Purchase Order Number. Invoices that are missing APS purchase order numbers are not eligible for payment.
- 29. **PAYMENT:** Any invoice received and payment made shall be subject to APS' terms and conditions (NET 30) unless specifically waived by APS in a separate written document.
- 30. **USE OF DISTRICT NAME OR LOGO(s):** Vendor may not use APS official name or logo, or any phrase associated with the District, without written permission from the Superintendent of Schools or their designee.
- 31. **DISPUTE RESOLUTION:** In the event the Parties do not agree to mediate the dispute or unable to resolve the dispute through mediation, then the dispute shall be resolved by binding arbitration. Such arbitration shall be governed by the New Mexico Uniform Arbitration Act, NMSA 44-7A-1, et seq. as amended.

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS FOR COMPLIANCE WITH 2 C.F.R. PART 200, APPENDIX II

1. REMEDIES

The parties agree that the Owner reserves all rights and privileges under applicable laws andregulations with respect to this contract in the event of a breach of contract, including but not limited to the right to institute legal proceedings in a court of competent jurisdiction seekingmonetary damages, court costs and litigation expenses, as applicable.

2. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE AND CONVENIENCE

The parties agree that the Owner reserves the right to terminate the contract immediately, with written notice to the Contractor, in the event of a breach or default of the Contractor, including but not limited to situations in which the Contractor fails, after a reasonable opportunity to cure, to: (1) meet schedules, deadlines, and/or delivery dates within the time specified in the procurement solicitation, contract, and/or a purchase order; (2) make any payments owed; or (3) otherwise perform in accordance with the contract and/orthe procurement solicitation. The Owner also reserves the right to terminate the contract immediately, with written notice to the Contractor, for convenience, if the Owner believes that it is in the best interest of the Owner to do so. In the event of a termination for convenience of the Owner, the Contractor will be compensated only for work performed and goods provided by the Owner as of the termination date. The amount of compensation due the Contractor in the event of a termination for the convenience of the Owner shall be reasonable amount, using as a guide factors such as the percentage of work or services performed by the Contractor and accepted by the Owner as of the date of termination, the contract price and any unit prices specified in the contract, as applicable.

3. EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows:

a. The contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. The contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff ortermination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.

- b. The contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.
- c. The contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant has inquired about, discussed, ordisclosed the compensation of the employee or applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to instances in which

an employee who has access to the compensation information of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee's essential job functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the contractor's legal duty to furnish information.

- d. The contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the contractor's commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- e. The contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24,1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- f. The contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.
- g. In the event of the contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order I1246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- h. The contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (a) and the provisions of paragraphs (a) through (g) in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any Subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the administering agency, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

The applicant further agrees that it will be bound by the above equal opportunity clause withrespect to its own employment practices when it participates in federally assisted construction work: *Provided*, That if the applicant so participating is a State or local government, the above equal opportunity clause is not applicable to any agency, instrumentality or subdivision of such government which does not participate in work on or under the contract.

The applicant agrees that it will assist and cooperate actively with the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor in obtaining the compliance of contractors and subcontractors with the equal opportunity clause and the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor, that it will furnish the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor such information as they may require for the supervision of such compliance, and that it will otherwise assist the administering agency in the discharge of the agency's primary responsibility for securing compliance.

The applicant further agrees that it will refrain from entering into any contract or contract modification subject to Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, with a contractor debarred from, or who has not demonstrated eligibility for, Government contracts and federally assisted construction contracts pursuant to the Executive Order and will carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation of the equal opportunity clause as may be imposed upon contractors and subcontractors by the administering agency or the Secretary of Labor pursuant to Part II, Subpart D of the Executive Order. In addition, the applicant agrees that if it fails orrefuses to comply with these undertakings, the administering agency may take any or all of the following actions: Cancel, terminate, or suspend in whole or in part this grant (contract, loan,insurance, guarantee); refrain from extending any further assistance to the applicant under the program with respect to which the failure or refund occurred until satisfactory assurance of future compliance has been received from such applicant; and refer the case to the Department of Justice for appropriate legal proceedings.

4. DAVIS-BACON ACT

- a. All transactions regarding this contract shall be done in compliance with the Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148) and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as may be applicable. The contractor shall comply with 40 U.S.C. 3141-3144, and 3146-3148 and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 5 as applicable.
- b. Contractors are required to pay wages to laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than theprevailing wages specified in a wage determination made by the Secretary of Labor.
- c. Additionally, contractors are required to pay wages not less than once a week.

5. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

- a. Contractor. The contractor shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this contract.
- b. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause aboveand such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with all of these contract clauses.
- c. Breach. A breach of the contract clauses above may be grounds for termination of the contract, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. §5.12.

6. CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT

- a. Overtime *requirements*. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one-halftimes the basic rate of pay for allhours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- b. Violation; *liability for unpaid wages*; *liquidated damages*. In the event of any violation of theclause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and

subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section, in the sum of \$27 for each calendar day on which such individualwas required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section.

- c. Withholding/or unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The Owner shall upon its own actionor upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withholdor cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally-assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b) of this section.
- d. Subcontracts. The contractor or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clauses set forth in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The prime contractor shall be responsible for compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontractor with the clauses set forth in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this section.

7. RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT

The parties agree to comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401 (Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business Firms under Government Grants, Contracts and Cooperative Agreements), and any implementing regulations issued by FEMA.

8. CLEAN AIR ACT AND THE FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT

a. Clean Air Act

- I. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 U.S.C. § 7401 et seq.
- II. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriate Environmental Protection Agency Regional Office.
- III. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

Federal Water Pollution Control Act

I. The contractor agrees to comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations issued pursuant to the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. 1251 et seq.

II. The contractor agrees to report each violation to the Owner and understands and agrees that the Owner will, in turn, report each violation as required to assure notification to the Federal Emergency Management Agency, and the appropriateEnvironmental Protection Agency Regional Office.

III. The contractor agrees to include these requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$150,000 financed in whole or in part with Federal assistance provided by FEMA.

9. DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION

- a. This contract is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the contractor is required to verify that none of the contractor's principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded(defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.940) or disqualified (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).
- b. The contractor must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F:R. pt. 3000, subpart C, and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tiercovered transaction it enters into.
- c. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Owner. If it is laterdetermined that the contractor did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to Owner, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.
- d. The bidder or proposer agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any contract that may arise from this offer. The bidder or proposer further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

10. PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS

The Contractor agrees to comply with all applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act.

11 ACCESS TO RECORDS

The following access to records requirements apply to this contract:

- a. The Contractor agrees to provide Owner, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller Generalof the United States, or any of their authorized representative's access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- b. The Contractor agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any meanswhatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- c. The Contractor agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representative's access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.
- d.In compliance with the Disaster Recovery Act of 2018, the Owner and the Contractor

Acknowledge and agree that no language in this contract is intended to prohibit audits or internal reviews by the FEMA Administrator or the Comptroller General of the United States.

12. DHS SEAL, LOGO, AND FLAGS

The contractor shall not use the DHS seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS agency officials without specific FEMA pre-approval.

13. COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW, REGULATIONS, AND EXECUTIVE ORDERS

This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund all or a portion of the contract. The contractor will comply with all applicable Federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.

14. NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT

The Federal Government is not a party to this contract and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to the non-Federal entity, contractor, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

15. PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS

Contractor acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the Contractor's actions pertaining to this contract.

PROTESTS

If any Offeror who is aggrieved in connection with a solicitation or award of an Agreement may protest to the Purchasing Office in accordance with the requirements of the Contracting Procurement Regulations and the State Procurement Code. The protest should be made in writing within twenty-four (24) hours after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto, but **NO LATER THAN** fifteen (15) calendar days after the facts or occurrences giving rise thereto (NMSA1978, §13-1-172). The protest must be in writing and delivered to the Executive Director - Procurement Department, Albuquerque, New Mexico

- 1. In the event of a timely protest under this section, the Purchasing Agent and the Contracting Agency shall not proceed further with the procurement unless the Purchasing Agent makes a determination that the award of Agreement is necessary to protect substantial interests of the Contracting Agency (NMSA 1978, §13-1-173).
- 2. The Purchasing Agent or his/her Designee shall have the authority to take any action reasonably necessary to resolve a protest of an aggrieved Offeror concerning a procurement. This authority shall be exercised in accordance with adopted regulations, but shall not include the authority to award money damages or attorneys' fees (NMSA 1978, §13-1-174).
- 3. The Purchasing Agent or his/her Designee shall promptly issue a determination relating to the protest. The determination shall:
 - A. State the reasons for the action taken; and
 - B. Inform the protestant of the right to judicial review of the determination pursuant to NMSA 1978, §13-1-183.
- 5. A copy of the determination issued under NMSA 1978, §13-1-175 shall immediately be mailed to the protestant and other Offerors involved in the procurement in compliance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-176.

SCOPE OF WORK

OVERVIEW

Albuquerque Public Schools is the largest school district in New Mexico and one of the nation's largest school districts, covering more than 1,230 square mile geographical area. Currently, APS has 13 high schools, 4 K-8 schools, 12 schools of choice, 27 middle schools, 88 elementary schools plus 30 APS authorized Charter schools. APS has approximately 71,000 students and 11,000 employees. An elected Board of Education composed of seven members serving staggered terms of four years each governs APS. The Superintendent is Scott Elder.

RFP SCHEDULE

The RFP Buyer will make every effort to adhere to the RFP Schedule as noted on front cover of this RFP. The schedule is subject to change by addendum. The evaluation committee **MAY** interview the Offeror(s) of the top rated proposals; however, contracts may be awarded without such interviews and based solely on written offers. Finalists will be contacted to schedule interviews if required. If an interview is requested, evaluation scores will be re-scored to reflect written response and interview response.

PURPOSE OF THIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

The purpose of the Request for Quote (RFQ) is to solicit sealed proposals to establish a contract through competitive negotiations for the procurement of Supplemental -Translations and Interpretations Services.

***** If you have been awarded a contract under the previous proposal RFP 23-064NLM, please do not respond. This is a Supplemental RFP. *****

BACKGROUND

Translation and Interpretation Services (TIS) was founded in 1997, after the Office of Civil Rights (OCR) and APS reached an agreement requiring that persons with limited English proficiency be provided equal access to programs and activities in their own language. Consequently, the TIS office was created as part of the Language and Cultural Equity Department, to meet OCR requirements.

TIS provides translation and interpretation services for schools to facilitate communication with limited English speaking parents only. The TIS office does not provide services for outside agencies, students or staff. More than 90% of requests are for Spanish, followed by Vietnamese, Arabic, Swahili, Dari, and Pashto. However, the TIS office will serve any language requested to the best of its ability and with the resources available.

The TIS office coordinators are responsible for the coordination of translation and interpretation services. The office is tasked with facilitating essential and meaningful communication between parents and school personnel remotely or at school sites.

TIS serves the entire Albuquerque Public School District, which includes over 140 schools, with the exception of charter schools. For school year 2021-2022 the TIS office received approximately 2000 requests for translation services and over 5,000 requests for interpretation services. Requests over the years have increased and the TIS office projects that this trend will continue.

SCOPE OF WORK

The selected vendor(s) will provide interpreting and translating services for the Albuquerque

Public Schools District on an "as-needed" basis throughout the year as per this RFQ and Contractors Manual. A detailed manual for contractors is included in the appendix of this RFQ. The TIS office will be the primary contact and will coordinate interpretation and rate per word Translation services (Area I and Area II) for other departments, schools, and/or other locations with the successful contractor.

The Special Education Department will be the primary contact and will coordinate English to Spanish translations of flat rate IEP related documents (Area III) with the successful contractor.

This RFQ includes three areas of work performance and Bidders will need to specify for which areas they are providing a submittal in Form B.

Scope of Work- Additional Terms and Conditions

- APS and all persons submitting proposals under this RFP recognize and agree that the need for additional translating services may arise before or after the award of any contract pursuant this RFP. The award of a contract pursuant to this RFP will be a multi-source award, and APS may engage additional translators after the initial awards pursuant to this RFP. However, any such additional contracts will be at a price equal to or less than contracts for the same languages initially awarded pursuant to this RFP reflecting proposals which were received made in response to this RFP prior to the due date shown above. Any additional contract for translation services for a language for which APS has no prior contract will reflect pricing established for other contracts made pursuant to this RFP.
- For the life of this Procurement, APS reserves the right to award contracts, to individuals or firms who can provide individuals, who provide languages and who meet all the criteria. The contractor must meet and agree to the terms & conditions and compensation listed. Individuals or firms must submit, to Procurement, all the requirements/documents that are listed in submittal requirements.

Area I - Interpretation – Various Languages

The Translation and Interpretation Services Office is the owner requiring the work. Therefore, the Contractor cannot accept assignments directly given by school staff without the approval of the TIS office. Interpretations are usually conducted during school hours, although, there are some school or District functions and events that may require interpreters before and/or after school hours. Interpretation work will be provided on an as needed basis either remotely or onsite.

On-site work will be performed at various APS departments, schools, and other locations in Albuquerque, New Mexico. The contractor is expected to provide his/her own transportation to attend interpretation assignments. Local APS travel (mileage and travel time) will not be reimbursed. The TIS office will provide all the necessary information to successful contractors, including contractor manuals and reference material prior to commencement of services.

Remote work will be performed remotely for various APS departments, schools, and other entities in Albuquerque. The contractor is expected to supply and maintain their own internet service including their own video/audio equipment. These expenses will not be reimbursed. The TIS office will provide all the necessary information to successful contractors including

contractor manuals and reference material prior to commencement of services.

APS will evaluate rates and qualifications for interpreters based on the following factors:

- level of education
- verifiable documented years of experience working in the field of education
- verifiable documented years of experience as an interpreter
- current valid certification(s)

Due to the limited budget for English-Spanish interpreters, listed below are the rate ranges that APS will pay for interpreters based on the above mentioned factors. For languages other than Spanish APS will also take into account the scarcity of interpreters working in specific languages when determining hourly rates.

For all languages, bidder shall indicate the level of education, years of interpreting experience, years of experience in an educational setting, and type of certification(s).

The hourly rate does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts Tax for interpreter services. Local APS travel time and/or mileage does not apply and will not be reimbursed. Bidder is expected to provide his/her own transportation to attend interpretation assignments.

The hiring committee will determine the pay rate. Verifiable documentation must be included in this section in order to receive the highest rate for an interpreter. APS will determine Contractor's rate.

• Rate escalation may be considered after initial award with documented proof of court, medical, or community interpretation certification(s), or proof of on-going professional development.

Table I

Item	Hourly Rate Rau2es	Criteria
I.	\$23.00-\$26.99	HS Diploma, demonstrated knowledge of Spanish and English interpreting skills.
2.	\$27.00-\$32.99	Bachelors' Degree or higher, 2 -5 years of experience interpreting
3.	\$33.00-37.99	Bachelor's Degree or higher, 5-10 years of experience interpreting
4.	\$38.00-45.00	Court Certification, other nationally recognized certification, 10 or more years of experience
5	Above \$45.00	Depending on the scarcity of interpreters in particular languages

Area II - Translation - Rate per word - Various Languages

The Translation and Interpretation Services Office is the owner requiring the work. Therefore, the Contractor cannot accept assignments directly given by school staff without the approval of the TIS office. Receipt and delivery of translation assignments are primarily conducted via email, but the TIS office will work with particular contractor's platforms, ifnecessary.

Translation request are frequent and usually require 1-2 day turnaround, depending on the length of the document.

Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of four (4) continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

Spanish - English

Due to the limited budget for English-Spanish translators, APS will consider rates ranging from \$0.08 to \$0.13 per word. Specifying whether a contractor will invoice the rate per word based on the target versus the source language may affect scoring. The Evaluation Committee will review all rates to determine the most advantageous to APS after receiving all bidders' responses. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services.

Languages Other Than Spanish

Due to the limited budget for translators, APS will consider rates ranging from \$0.08 to \$0.20. Specifying whether a contractor will invoice the rate per word based on the target versus the source language may affect scoring. The Evaluation Committee will review all rates to determine the most advantageous to APS after receiving all bidders' responses. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services

Area III - Translation - Flat Rate Documents - English to Spanish

The Special Education Department is the owner requiring the translation of specific documents to be translated from English to Spanish at the flat rate determined by said department. The Contractor can only accept assignments from the Special Education Department. Therefore, the Contractor cannot accept Assignments directly given by school staff without the approval of the Special Education Department.

Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of two continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

Document flat rates are for Addendums to Individualized Education Program (IEP) documents, and/or IEP documents. This area and rates will be specifically used for and by the Special Education Department. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services.

Item	Document	Flat Rate
1.	IEP/Addendum	\$ 175.00
2.	PWN	\$100.00

Required Documentation:

In order to be considered for award, the following documentation is required:

Area I - Interpretation - Various Languages

1) Compliance with Contractor's Code of Ethics and Expectations for Contractors Contractor shall agree to abide by the Code of Ethics and the Expectations for Contractors.

2) Service Capability

Include a resume with submittal. Indicate length of time in business, certifications acquired, as well as any other information documenting that the Offeror has demonstrated competence, credibility and responsiveness in the past and can be reasonably expected to perform in a like manner in the future.

In addition to a resume the response should also include the following minimum requirements necessary for consideration:

- Indicate level of education acquired
- Availability during school hours (M-F 7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.)
- Availability during evening hours (M-F 5:00 pm to 8:00 p.m.)
- Proof of current auto insurance
- Copy of current business license/ registration certificate from the State of New Mexico Taxation and Revenue Department.

3) References

The submittal shall include three (3) letters of recommendation or references from clients who receive or have received similar services. The references should reflect the span of the Offeror's time in the business. APS reserves the right to contact references other than, and/or in addition to, those furnished by the bidder. The minimum information that should be provided about each reference is:

- Name of individual or company for which services were provided;
- Address of individual or company;
- Name of contact person;
- Telephone number of contact person;
- E-mail address of contact person;
- Type of services provided and dates services were provided.

4) Proof of Certification or evaluation

Contractors shall provide valid proof or current court certification indicating state and issuance date. In lieu of an acceptable certification the Offeror will agree to undergo an on-site evaluation of his/her language skills on a date and time set by the APS TIS office. The evaluation will be pass/fail and will consist of an oral examination assessing language and interpreting skills. The evaluation will only be required for contractors who have not worked with APS within the past two (2) years. The successful Offeror must either receive a passing score on the evaluation or provide proof of court certification to be awarded a contract and provide interpretation services to APS.

Area II - Translation - Rate per word - Various Languages

1) Compliance with Contractor's Code of Ethics and Expectations for Contractors Contractor shall agree to abide by the Code of Ethics and the Expectations for Contractors.

2) Service Capability

Include a resume with submittal. Indicate length of time in business, certifications acquired, as well as any other information documenting that the bidder has demonstrated competence, credibility and responsiveness in the past and can be reasonably expected to perform in a like manner in the future.

In addition to a resume the response should also include the following minimum requirements necessary for consideration:

• Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of four (4) continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

3) References

The submittals shall include three (3) letters of recommendation or references from clients who receive or have received similar services. The references should reflect the span of the bidder's time in the business. APS reserves the right to contact references other than, and/or in addition to, those furnished by the bidder. The minimum information that should be provided about each reference is:

- Name of individual or company for which services were provided;
- Address of individual or company;
- Name of contact person;
- Telephone number of contact person;
- E-mail address of contact person;
- Type of services provided and dates services were provided.

Area III - Translation - Flat Rate Documents - English to Spanish

1) Compliance with Contractor's Code of Ethics and Expectations for Contractors Contractor shall agree to abide by the Code of Ethics and the Expectations for Contractors.

2) Service Capability

Include a resume with submittal. Indicate length of time in business, certifications acquired, as well as any other information documenting that the bidder has demonstrated competence, credibility and responsiveness in the past and can be reasonably expected to perform in a like manner in the future.

In addition to a resume the response should also include the following minimum requirements necessary for consideration:

• Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of two (2) continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

3) References

The submittals shall include three (3) letters of recommendation or references from clients who receive or have received similar services. The references should reflect the span of the bidder's time in the business. APS reserves the right to contact references other than, and/or in addition to, those furnished by the bidder. The minimum information that should be provided about each reference is:

- Name of individual or company for which services were provided;
- Address of individual or company;
- Name of contact person;
- Telephone number of contact person
- E-mail address of contact person;
- Type of services provided and dates services were provided.

EVALUATION CRITERIA

EVALUATION CRITERIA Proposals must address each of the following criteria. Each proposal may be awarded points up to the numeric value listed. Points will be awarded in compliance with NMSA 1978, §13-1-21, for New Mexico In-State Resident Business, Native American Resident Business, New Mexico Resident Veteran Business or Native American Resident Veteran Business. If proposal is a Joint Venture, Offer or shall state in submitted proposal the percentage of work that will be performed by each business. Obtain more information:

http://tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-preference-certification.aspx and https://www.generalservices.state.nm.us/statepurchasing/vendorpreferencelist.aspx

Please Note: An Offer or cannot be awarded both a resident business preference and a resident veteran business preference or a Native American resident preference and a Native American resident veteran contractor preference.

The Preference(s) does not apply if APS is utilizing federal funds.

The Offer or should contact Buyer for clarification of evaluation criteria or terminology

	Possible Points	Points This RFP
Level of Education	25	IXI'1
High school or equivalent will be awarded 15 points	23	
Bachelor's degree will be awarded 20 points		
Masters or above will be awarded the full 25 points		
Verifiable Documented years of experience working in the field of education	25	
(including interpreting in educational setting);		
0-5 years of experience will be awarded 0-10 points		
5-10 years of experience will be awarded 11-15 points		
10-15 years of experience will be awarded 16-24 points		
15+ years of experience will be awarded the full 25 points		
Verifiable documented years of experience as an interpreter or translator in any	25	
industry		
0-5 years of experience will be awarded 5-10 points		
5-10 years of experience will be awarded 11-15 points		
10-15 years of experience will be awarded 16-24 points		
15+ years of experience will be awarded the full 25 points		
Current Valid certification (s)	25	
Medical or court certification will be awarded full 25 points.		
Community or company certification will be awarded 15-24 points.		
Total Possible Points	100	
New Mexico Resident Business or Native American Resident Business	8	
Preference: Eight percent of the total possible points to a resident business.		
Offer or shall include a copy of their In-State Certificate issued by State of New Mexico		
Taxation & Revenue Department.		
Veteran New Mexico Resident Business or Native American Resident Veteran	10	
Business Preference: Ten percent of the total possible points to a resident veteran		
business or native American resident veteran business preference		
 Ten percent of the total possible points to a resident veteran business. 		
• •10 points for Resident Veteran Business/Contractor with annual revenues of		
\$3 million or less as verified by State of NM Tax & Revenue.		
Total Possible Awarded Points	100-110	

SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS

ATTENTION:

Proposals must be submitted electronically via Vendor Registry by required date and time as noted on Bid/RFP documents.



https://vrapp.vendorregistry.com/Vendor/Register/Index/albuquerque-public-schools-nm-vendor-registration

<u>Important Information:</u> Albuquerque Public Schools Online Bidding System (Vendor Registry) utilizes the Internet and the World Wide Web which is comprised of systems that are completely out APS's control including but not limited to: the District, its agents, and registered suppliers' respective internet service providers. The District and its agents are not responsible for Internet outages, hardware failures, software failures, downtime, internet slowness, acts of God, power failures, and or user errors. All bids/proposals must be submitted before the due date regardless of your organization's ability to submit proposals online. It is the suppliers' responsibility to ensure that Bid/RFP offers arrive before the due date and time.

Proposers understand and agree that technical support may not be readily available the day of and or the hours/minutes prior to a bid closing time (Due Date/Time). Proposers also understand and agree that internet access, browsers, and operating systems are not supported by the District and/or its agents. Suppliers are strongly encouraged to review, create, and submit all electronic responses several days in advance of the due date and time. Please Note: There is no fee to submit a RFP response, contact Vendor Registry Customer Service for assistance if you see a fee is required.

PROPOSAL – DETAILED REQUIREMENTS

The Offer or is particularly encouraged to address all evaluation criteria that will be evaluated as described herein. If a factor of evaluation is not adequately responded to by the Offer or, the Offer or may be determined to be non-responsive.

Proposal Format -

Proposals shall not exceed 60 pages total for all of the sections listed below. Each sheet face that is printed with text or graphics counts as one page. Front Cover, Section Dividers, Letter of Transmittal and Required Forms do not count towards page count. Please upload one file that contains all documentation in Vendor Registry.

- Letter of Transmittal
- Level of Education
- Verifiable Documented Years of Experience working in the field of Education (including interpreting in educational setting)
- Verifiable Documented Years of Experience as an interpreter or translator in any industry
- Current Valid Certification
 - Form A Professional Information
 - Form B Cost detail
 - Form C Contractor's Code of Ethics
 - Resume
 - Three (3) Letters of Recommendation/Reference from Clients
 - Proof of court, medical or other certification indicating state and issuance date, if applicable

- Proof of American Translator's Association certification, if applicable
- For Interpreters only Proof of current auto insurance
- Signed Campaign Contribution Disclosure Form
- Signed Conflict of Interest and Debarment/Suspension Form
- State of New Mexico Resident Business or Veteran Resident Business Certificate, ifapplicable
- Copy of current business license and registration certificate from the State of New MexicoTaxation and Revenue Department, if applicable

FORMS & ATTACHMENTS

SUBMIT WITH YOUR PROPOSAL

Items one (1) to four (4) each MUST have a response, failure to respond to all four items WILL result in the disqualification of your proposal.

ame	
itle	
E-Mail Address	
elephone	
Jame	
itle	
E-Mail Address	
Celephone	
	d for <u>clarifications</u> :



Authorized Signature and Date (Must be signed by the person identified in Item #2, above.)

I acknowledge receipt of any and all amendments of this RFP.

COMPLIANCE

(REQUIRED LEGAL FORMS)

All of the following forms must be signed and submitted with your proposal or your proposal may be rejected.

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTION DISCLOSURE FORM

Pursuant to NMSA 1978, § 13-1-191.1 (2006), any person seeking to enter into a contract with any state agency or local public body for professional services, a design and build project delivery system, or the design and installation of measures the primary purpose of which is to conserve natural resources must file this form with that state agency or local public body. This form must be filed even if the contract qualifies as a small purchase or a sole source contract. The Prospective Contractor must disclose whether they, a family member or a representative of the Prospective Contractor has made a campaign contribution to an applicable public official of the state or a local public body during the two years prior to the date on which the Contractor submits a proposal or, in the case of a sole source or small purchase contract, the two years prior to the date the contractor signs the contract, if the aggregate total of contributions given by the Prospective Contractor, a family member or a representative of the Prospective Contractor to the public official exceeds two hundred and fifty dollars (\$250) over the two year period.

Furthermore, the state agency or local public body shall void an executed contract or cancel a solicitation or proposed award for a proposed contract if: 1) a Prospective Contractor, a family member of the prospective Contractor, or a representative of the Prospective Contractor gives a campaign contribution or other thing of value to an applicable public official or the applicable public official's employees during the pendency of the procurement process or 2) a Prospective Contractor fails to submit a fully completed disclosure statement pursuant to the law.

THIS FORM MUST BE FILED BY ANY PROSPECTIVE CONTRACTOR WHETHER OR NOT THEY, THEIR FAMILY MEMBER, OR THEIR REPRESENTATIVE HAS MADE ANY CONTRIBUTIONS SUBJECT TO DISCLOSURE.

The following definitions apply:

- "Applicable public official" means a person elected to an office or a person appointed to complete a term of an elected office, who has the authority to award or influence the award of the contract for which the Prospective Contractor is submitting a competitive sealed proposal or who has the authority to negotiate a sole source or small purchase contract that may be awarded without submission of a sealed competitive proposal.
- "Campaign Contribution" means a gift, subscription, loan, advance or deposit of money or other thing of value, including the estimated value of an in-kind contribution, that is made to or received by an applicable public official or any person authorized to raise, collect or expend contributions on that official's behalf for the purpose of electing the official to federal, statewide or local office. "Campaign Contribution" includes the payment of a debt incurred in an election campaign, but does not include the value of services provided without compensation or unreimbursed travel or other personal expenses of individuals who volunteer a portion or all of their time on behalf of a candidate or political committee, nor does it include the administrative or solicitation expenses of a political committee that are paid by an organization that sponsors the committee.
- "Family member" means spouse, father, mother, child, father-in-law, mother-in-law, daughter-in-law or son-in-law.
- "Pendency of the procurement process" means the time period commencing with the public notice of the request for proposals and ending with the award of the contract or the cancellation of the request for proposals.
- "Person" means any corporation, partnership, individual, joint venture, association or any other private legal entity.

"Prospective Contractor" means a person who is subject to the competitive sealed proposal process set forth in the Procurement Code or is not required to submit a competitive sealed proposal because that person qualifies for a sole source or a small purchase contract.

"Representative of a Prospective Contractor" means an officer or director of a corporation, a member or manager of a limited liability corporation, a partner of a partnership or a trustee of a trust of the Prospective Contractor.

DISCLOSUI	RE OF CONTRIBUTIONS:		
Contribution	Made By:		
Relation to P	rospective Contractor:		
Name of App	olicable Public Official:		
Date Contrib	ution(s) Made:		
Amount(s) of	f Contribution(s)		
Nature of Co	entribution(s)		
Purpose of C	contribution(s)		
	Signature		Date
SIGN WHERE	Title (position)	– OR –	
PLICABLE	NO CONTRIBUTIONS IN THI DOLLARS (\$250) WERE MAD representative.	E AGGREGATE TOTAL OV	
	a.		Date
	Title (position)		Offeror Business Name

CONFLICT OF INTEREST, NON-COLLUSION AND DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION CERTIFICATION FORM CONFLICT OF INTEREST

As utilized herein, the term "Vendor" shall mean that entity submitting a proposal to Albuquerque Public Schools in response to the above referenced bids/request for proposals.

The authorized Person, Firm and/or Corporation states that to the best of his/her belief and knowledge:
No employee or board member of Albuquerque Public Schools (or close relative), with the exception of the
person(s) identified below, has a direct or indirect financial interest in the Vendor or in the proposed
transaction. Vendor neither employs, nor is negotiating to employ, any Albuquerque Public Schools employee,
board member or close relative, with the exception of the person(s) identified below. Vendor did not
participate, directly or indirectly, in the preparation of specifications upon which the quote or offer is made. If
the Vendor is a New Mexico State Legislator or if a New Mexico State Legislator holds a controlling interest in
Vendor, please identify the legislator: List below the name(s) of any
Albuquerque Public Schools employee, board member or close relative who now or within the preceding 12
months (1) works for the Vendor; (2) has an ownership interest in the Vendor (other than as an owner of less
than 1% of Vendor's stock, if Vendor is a publicly traded corporation); (3) is a partner, officer, director, trustee
or consultant to the Vendor; (4) has received grant, travel, honoraria or other similar support from Vendor; or
(5) has a right to receive royalties from the vendor.
CERTIFICATION OF NON-COLLUSION STATEMENT
Vendor certifies under penalty of perjury that its response to this procurement solicitation is in all respects bona fide, fair, and made
without collusion or fraud with any person, joint venture, partnership, corporation or other business or legal entity. Does vendor agree? YES Initials of Authorized Representative of vendor
agree? 1 ES initials of Authorized Representative of Vendor
DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION STATUS
The Vendor certifies that it is not suspended, debarred or ineligible from entering into contracts with the Federa
Government, or any State agency or local public body, or in receipt of a notice or proposed debarment from any
Federal or State agency or local public body. The vendor agrees to provide immediate notice to Albuquerque
Public School's Purchasing Department in the event of being suspended, debarred or declared ineligible by any
department or agency of the Federal government, or any agency of local public body of the State of New
Mexico, or upon receipt of a notice of proposed debarment that is received after the submission of the quote or
offer but prior to the award of the purchase order or contract.
<u>CERTIFICATION</u>
The undersigned hereby certifies that he/she has read the above <u>CONFLICT OF INTEREST, NON-</u>
COLLUSION and DEBARMENT/SUSPENSION Status requirements and that he/she understands and will
comply with these requirements. The undersigned further certifies that they have the authority to certify
compliance for the vendor named and that the information contained in this document is true and accurate
to the best of their knowledge.
Signature: Date
Signature. Date
Name of Person Signing (typed or printed):
Title:
Email:
Name of Company (typed or printed):

Address: _____City/ State: ____

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT

Contractor must sign and submit to the Owner the following certification:

APPENDIX A.44C.F.R. PART I H CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Certification for Contracts, Grants, Loans, and Cooperative Agreements: The undersigned certifies, to

the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- 1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of theundersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement.
- 2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of anyagency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an

Employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit

Standard Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions.

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by section 1352, title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than \$100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor, certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each Statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38, Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements, apply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature of Contractor's Authorized Official		
Name and Title of Contractor's Authorized Off	 ficial	
Date		

ALBUQUERQUE PUBLIC SCHOOLS TERMS AND CONDITIONS STATEMENT OF CONFIDENTIALITY

The undersigned employee of/subcontractor to	, hereinafter referred to as "Offeror'
and/or "Contractor", agrees, during the RFP process, and during the terr	m of the Contract between Contractor
and the Albuquerque Public Schools (APS) and forever thereafter, to ke	eep confidential all information and
material provided by APS or otherwise acquired by the Employee/Subc	contractor, excepting only such
information as is already known to the public, and including any such in	nformation and material relating to
Attachments of this RFP, and relating to any client, vendor, or other par	rty transacting business with APS, and
not to release, use or disclose the same except with the prior written per	mission of APS. This obligation shall
survive the termination or cancellation of the Contract between Contract	etor and APS or of the undersigned's
employment or affiliation with Contractor, even if occasioned by Contr	actor's breach or wrongful termination.

The undersigned recognizes that the disclosure of information may give rise to irreparable injury to APS, a client or customer of APS, or to the owner of such information, inadequately compensable in damages and that, accordingly, APS or such other party may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of the within undertakings, in addition to any other legal remedies which may be available. The undersigned acknowledges that he or she may be personally subject to civil and/or criminal proceedings for such breach or threatened breach.

SIGN HERE	
SIE	Signature
	Title
	Offeror Business Name
	Date

PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL REQUIREMENTS AND CHECKLIST

Please submit your completed proposal, including the following items. Note that the requested information is mandatory and failure to submit these items with your response may deem it non-responsive and may be disqualified.

	Letter of Transmittal, SIGNED
	Evaluation Criteria Documentation
□ F	Price Proposal
	Completed Conflict of Interest and Debarment/Suspension Form, SIGNED
	Campaign Contributions Disclosure Form, SIGNED
	Byrd Anti Lobbying Certification <mark>SIGNED</mark> - For Federal Purchases
\square S	Statement of Confidentiality, SIGNED
□ F	Resident Contractor Or Native American Resident Contractor (or Veteran Resident Contractor or Native
A	American Veteran Resident Contractor) Preference Certificate issued to the Offeror by State of New Mexico
Τ	Taxation and Revenue – if applicable
Obta	in more information:
http:	//tax.newmexico.gov/Businesses/in-state-veteran-preference-certification.aspx and
https	s://www.generalservices.state.nm.us/statepurchasing/vendorpreferencelist.aspx
\Box A	Addendums (if applicable) – before submitting your proposal, please check for addendums here:
<u>h</u>	http://www.aps.edu/procurement/current-bids-and-rfps

* If items are not completed as required, your proposal may be deemed non-responsive.

FORM A: PROFESSIONAL INFORMATION

Address:							
City:			State:			Zip:	
Phone Number	r:						
E-Mail:							
Bidders shall papply: 1) Level of Ed	provide the following in	formation	with the	bid s	ubmissi	on and che	ck all are
Check	Education		Ar	ea of	Study/	Institution	
	High School Graduat	e					
	Bachelor's Degree						
	Master's Degree						
	Other						
2) Documente	d Years of Experience						
Check	Exp	Experience			Number of Years of Verifiable Experience		
	Interpretation/Transl	ation (in a	ny industr	y)			
	Interpretation/Transl	ation (in e	ducation)				
	Educational setting (educator, e	ducation				
	assistant etc) Other						
	Other						
3) Certification	1S						
Issue Date	Certific	ation			Issuing	g Organiza	tion
4) Availability	(Interpreters ONLY) –	Please lis	t your ava		lity M-F Wed.	7, 7:30 am -	– 8:00 pı Fri.
School Hours	(7:30 am – 4:30 pm)	1,1011,	1 403.		,,,,,,,	111415.	111,
	s (5:00 pm – 8:00 pm)						

FORM B: COST DETAIL

	oretation – Various Langu	will be providing a submittal: ages
Area II Tran	slation – Rate per Word –	- Various Languages
Area III Tra	nslation – Flat Rate Docum	ments – English to Spanish
Please list the language(s) i	n which you interpret/tran	ıslate:

AREA I – INTERPRETATION – Various Languages

By submitting this offer, I agree to the set hourly rate ranges as defined in this RFQ.

Note: Rate escalation may be considered after initial award with documented proof of court, medical, or community interpretation certification(s), or proof of on-going professional development.

Item	Hourly Rate	Criteria		
	Ranges			
1		HS Diploma, demonstrated knowledge of Spanish and		
	\$23.00 - \$26.99	English interpreting skills.		
2	\$27.00 - \$32.99	Bachelor's Degree, Master's Degree and/or 2 -5 years of experience		
		interpreting		
3	\$33.00 - \$37.99	Bachelor's Degree, Master's Degree and/or 5-10 years of		
		experience interpreting		
4	\$38.00 - \$45.00	Court certification, other nationally recognized certification and/or		
		10 or more years of experience interpreting		
5	Above \$ 45.00	Depending on the scarcity of interpreters in particular		
		languages		

AREA II - TRANSLATION - Rate per Word - Various Languages

Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of two (2) continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

Spanish - English

Due to the limited budget for English-Spanish translators, APS will consider rates ranging from \$0.08 to \$0.13. Specifying whether a contractor will invoice the rate per word based on the target versus the source language may affect scoring. The Evaluation Committee will review all rates to determine the most advantageous to APS after receiving all bidders' responses. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services.

Item	Rate per word	Target or Source
1. Spanish - English		

Languages Other Than Spanish

Due to the limited budget for translators, APS will consider rates ranging from \$0.08 to \$0.20. Specifying whether a contractor will invoice the rate per word based on the target versus the source language may affect scoring. The Evaluation Committee will review all rates to determine the most advantageous to APS after receiving all bidders' responses. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services.

Item (if applicable, list by language)	Rate per word	Target or Source
1.		
2.		
3.		

AREA III - TRANSLATION - Flat Rate Documents - English to Spanish

Proof of certification from the American Translator's Association (ATA) or a minimum of two (2) continuous years translating educational material will be required. Documentation of verifiable experience and/or certification must be provided.

Document flat rates are for Addendums to Individualized Education Program (IEP) documents, and/or IEP documents. This area and rates will be specifically used for and by the Special Education Department. The rate per word does not include New Mexico Gross Receipts tax for translation services.

Item	Document	Flat Rate
1.	IEP/Addendum	\$ 175.00
2.	PWN	\$100.00

By signature below,	, Offeror agrees t	o and shall fully	y comply with all 1	rates shown in tl	his section of
RFQ.					

Signature:	 Date:

FORM C: CONTRACTOR'S CODE OF ETHICS

The code of ethics is a set of guidelines and/or rules summarized in 10 cannons and issued by an organization so that professionals in that field may follow and abide. The educational industry, at this time does not have established cannons; therefore the TIS office follows the cannons set forth by the legal and medical industries. These guidelines define boundaries, which protect a professional from being pressed into duties that are outside their skills and professional role, and they establish the parameters through which APS and parents can expect the interpreter/translator to work.

For Interpreters

- Confidentiality Information obtained about students, families, or school personnel is not to
 be discussed outside the confines of the context in which the information was obtained. For
 example, the fact that the school psychologist reported to a parent through an interpreter
 that a student has a specific learning disability should not be discussed by the interpreter in
 the community or with anyone outside the scope and confines of the meeting in which the
 communication transpired.
- Accuracy Interpreters should faithfully render the message in such a way that all
 information is communicated accurately, according to meaning. In other words, there is to
 be no adding, omitting, or changing any portion of the communication by the interpreter
 during transmission. Neither should the interpreter provide unsolicited explanation or
 information. If specific terms or concepts cannot be communicated meaningfully, the parties
 involved should be informed so that adjustments can be made and the communication
 reformulated.
- **Completeness** Interpreters should faithfully render the message in its entirety, including expression, gestures, tone, and inflections used by the speaker. Interpreters may ask for reasonable repetitions to the speaker so all the message is rendered in its entirety.
- **Professionalism** Interpreters should conduct themselves in a professional manner: prepared, well dressed, punctual, courteous, and respectful.
- Continuing Education Ongoing skill development is an important part of this profession.
 Language service providers should pursue the opportunity to attend training programs, conferences, participate in discussions and exchanges of information, and consult with other interpreters, translators, and professionals to further develop and enhance their skills. These opportunities should serve to extend interpreters' and translators' knowledge of idiomatic expressions, dialects, accents, regionalisms, and technical terms in both languages.
- Representation The interpreter should not misrepresent his/her skills, qualifications, or certifications. Neither should he/she misrepresent the organization under which he/she is working.
- Conflict of Interest Interpreters should immediately disclose any conflict of interest as soon as it becomes evident. Furthermore, interpreters should respond within ethical boundaries to all situations and withdraw from any situation that would comprise them ethically.

FORM C: CONTRACTOR'S CODE OF ETHICS

- Neutrality and Impartiality Interpreters should remain neutral and impartial, refraining from expression of any bias, personal opinion, recommendations, or comments. Interpreters must make every effort not to take sides.
- Acceptance of Assignments Interpreters and translators should not accept tasks from school personnel which surpass their capabilities or training. It is important to be candid with school and district personnel when you feel unable to adequately complete an assignment. For example, a Vietnamese interpreter may speak both Vietnamese and English fluently but may not have the reading and written language skills to translate specialized educational documents into Vietnamese. Or, since Chinese is not a single language, a Chinese interpreter may perform well in Mandarin but be unable to interpret Cantonese. An interpreter may feel comfortable working in small group settings but not before large groups. Likewise, interpreters should not be expected to assist with administration of tests without previous training or experience; otherwise, results will be jeopardized.
- **Cultural Competency Awareness** Interpreters should practice cross cultural competency by taking into account cultural awareness when interpreting. Cultural competency requires self-awareness, cultural humility, and the commitment to understanding and embracing culture as central to effective practice.

For Translators - American Translators Association (ATA) Code of Ethics

- To convey meaning between people and cultures faithfully, accurately, and impartially.
- To hold in confidence any privileged and/or confidential information entrusted to us in the course of our work.
- To represent our qualifications, capabilities and responsibilities honestly and to work always within them.
- To enhance those capabilities at every opportunity by continuing education in language, subject field, and professional practice.
- To act collegially by sharing knowledge and experience.
- To define in advance by mutual agreement, and to abide by, the terms of all business transactions among ourselves and with others.
- To endeavor in good faith to resolve among ourselves any dispute that arises from our professional interactions.

By submitting an offer for this RFQ, I agree to	o and shall fully comply with all requirements of RFQ.
Signature:	Date:



Translation and Interpretation Services

Contractor's Manual



INTRODUCTION

This manual provides a general orientation to the district and the work involved for Albuquerque Public Schools (APS) translators and interpreters. We hope that you find this manual to be a helpful resource. Although, it contains some information that you may already know, we suggest that you read it carefully since there is new and important information.

The APS Translation and Interpretation Services office has been operating for approximately 24 years and in that time, it has gained recognition for being efficient and providing high quality services. We know that the translators and interpreters who provide the services are the main reason for the office's good reputation. We, therefore, would like to take this opportunity to thank you for your work and professionalism. We feel grateful to be working with such a team of individuals.

Sindy Flor, Coordinator Translation/Interpretation Services 505-881-9429 x 80071 sindy.flor@aps.edu Coordinator Translation/Interpretation Services 505-881-9429 x 80072

APS TRANSLATION AND INTERPRETATION SERVICES OVERVIEW

The office of Translation and Interpretation Services was established in the fall of 1997. Since that time, the office has experienced substantial growth in the number of languages served as well as in the number of translators and interpreters on contract. It is difficult to predict whether this growth will continue. However, since 1997, the number of requests for service has grown, and there is the possibility that it will continue to expand as more school personnel become more aware of our services and understand the importance of using certified and or highly qualified District interpreters and translators.

Our office is part of the Department of Language and Cultural Equity, which also oversees the bilingual and English Language Learners programs. Translation and Interpretation Services is under the direction of two coordinators. Our operations cover and serve over 140 schools from the preschool level through high school, in addition to APS district departments. The following procedures and policies allow our office to serve our District.

SCOPE OF WORK

Albuquerque Public Schools (APS), in compliance with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act regarding Limited English Proficient (LEP) persons, is responsible for facilitating the communication between schools/departments and parents to assist with any communication related to the education of their children. We serve approximately 140 schools scattered across nearly 1,200 square miles within the city of Albuquerque. The languages requested include Spanish, Vietnamese, Chinese, Swahili, Farsi, Dari, Pashto and Arabic, among others.

As part of our scope of services to better communicate with non-English speaking parents, APS Translation and Interpretation Services contracts with a number of certified and/or highly qualified translators and interpreters. These contractors translate district and school documents or interpret on-site or remotely at special education meetings, parent conferences, student hearings, and other such meetings and events as requested by school personnel or administrators. Translations must be done within ample but firm timelines as determined by the District. Interpretations are conducted during school hours, although there are some school or district functions and events that require interpreters before/after school hours.

CONTRACTING WITH APS

The following are important aspects of contracting with APS:

- The contractor must have a valid signed contract in place, a vendor number, and a Purchase Order (PO) number before providing services for the Translation/Interpretation Office.
- Contracts are administered at the direction of the Translation/Interpretation Office coordinators.
- The Contractor shall not be paid for any services that are clearly beyond the defined scope of his/her contract (e.g., transporting parents or students; providing services at non-APS locations such as clinics, hospitals, or other agencies).
- The Contractor providing interpretation services shall not be paid for mileage nor travel time.
- The Contractor providing remote interpretation services provides their own internet services, video, or audio equipment for rendering remote interpretation service.
- The site administrator or designee may withhold payment of invoices if he/she cannot satisfactorily verify the completion of work.
- No work may be subcontracted.
- Only the Translation/Interpretations Office assigns the work. The contractor cannot accept assignments directly from school personnel or from any other APS department.

ASSIGNMENT OF SERVICES

- The Translation/Interpretation Office will maintain a balanced and fair distribution of assignments among contractors. Specific requests from interpreters and the interpreter's geographic location will be taken into consideration when making on-site interpretation assignments. For remote interpretation, the interpreter will be provided the meeting information necessary to join the meetings.
- For translation services, factors such turnaround, quality, expertise, and price will be taken into account when assigning translations.
- The Translation/Interpretation office cannot guarantee a number of assignments given to contractors, as these will vary depending on the needs and requests coming from APS schools/departments.
- Contractors may accept or decline assignments at their discretion.

INVOICING AND PAYMENT

Contractor shall maintain a log sheet(s) of APS assignments and submit the log sheet(s) for interpretations services or translation services along with the invoice on a monthly basis to the Translation and Interpretation Office (TIS).

- APS contractors providing interpretation services shall maintain an interpretation log of APS
 assignments completed each month, itemizing the length of time spent at each interpretation
 assignment or location. (See Attachment A, "Interpretation Services Log")
- APS contractors providing translation services shall maintain a translation log of APS assignments completed each month, itemizing the number of words for each translation assignment and school (See Attachment B, "Translation Services Log")
- Contractors shall prepare their own personal or business invoices, reflecting a general description of the services provided, date, vendor number, purchase order number (PO), contract number, invoice number, name, remit address and Translation/Interpretation Office address, sub-total amount, tax amount (if applicable), and grand total due (See Attachment C, example of invoice). Our office can provide a template if requested.
- Contractors shall submit one invoice, along with the logs, by the <u>10th day of each month</u>. The invoice and the logs shall reflect services provided the previous month.
- Contractors shall not submit invoices for each individual assignment. Invoices shall reflect the service
 description and amounts for an entire month. The office requests contractors submit their invoices once
 a month without accumulating multiple months.
- The original invoice will be emailed to translate@aps.edu. The contractor will receive an email acknowledging receipt of the invoice.
- On-site interpretation is for 2 hours minimum, paid according to contractor's set hourly rate. After the first 2 hours, services will be prorated in increments of 15 minutes to nearest ¼ hour.
- Remote interpretation is for one-hour minimum paid according to the contractor's set hourly rate. After the first hour, services will be prorated in increments of 15 minutes to nearest ¼ hour.
- If an assignment exceeds more than 30 minutes past the original estimated ending time, the contractor will email TIS office the day of the assignment to notify the office of the actual ending time.
 Discrepancies between the database system and invoices may delay payment of invoices.

- For on-site and remote interpretation, interpreters will make reminder telephone calls to parents prior to the meeting dates.
- Reminder calls to parents are paid per minute based on the agreed upon hourly rate. Please keep track of minutes spent on the phone. Compile the total time spent on reminder calls and log the total time spent as one line item on the log sheet.
- Individual telephone interpretation assignments are paid per minute based on an agreed upon hourly rate. Please keep track of minutes you spend on the phone. When using the log sheet provided by our office simply input a start time and ending time of the call so that it matches the number of minutes that was spent on the phone. For example, if you spent 10 minutes on a call enter a start time of 8:00 a.m. and end time of 8:10 a.m. The provided spreadsheet will convert the minutes into hours so that the "Hours" column reflects the correct amount of time to be billed.
- APS strives to meet or exceed prompt payment terms. Typically, our payment schedule is within 30-45
 days from the date our office receives the invoice. Discrepancies or questions regarding invoices may
 delay payment.
- The contractor is responsible for payment of all New Mexico Gross Receipts taxes and any other taxes as a result of this work.
- The taxes shall be entered as a separate amount on each billing or request for payment.
- For contractors who reside outside of the State of New Mexico, gross receipt tax does not apply.

NO SHOWS AND CANCELATIONS

Advanced Cancelations

Receipt of a cancelation from the TIS office by 4pm the day before an assignment is considered an
advance cancelation and the contractor will not bill for that assignment. It is the responsibility of the
Translation and Interpretation Department to notify the contractor if a school or department cancels an
assignment with the Translation and Interpretation Department.

Same Day Cancelations

• In the event that a school or department cancels an assignment the same day of the assignment, then said cancelation is a "Same Day Cancelation" and the contractor may invoice a minimum time scheduled according to the agreed upon rate.

No Shows

- In the event that a participant of an assignment (parent, teacher, administrator etc.) at an assignment does not show, the contractor may invoice minimum time scheduled according to the agreed upon rate if the contractor shows up for the appointment, meeting, or event as scheduled.
- In the event the parent is not present, it is acceptable for APS staff to have the contractor contact the parent over the telephone to conduct the assignment over the phone or reschedule before the interpreter leaves the meeting site or is dismissed from a remote meeting.
- It is the contractor's responsibility to notify the Translation and Interpretation Department of the "no show", on the day of the assignment, and note it on the contractor's assignment log.

Inclement Weather

- Scheduled interpretation assignments shall be considered cancelled if APS schools are closed due to
 inclement weather. Contractor shall not bill APS for inclement weather appointments when the media
 announces or it is published on the APS website (www.aps.edu) that school will be cancelled for the
 following day.
- If school is cancelled the day of inclement weather it shall be considered as a "Same Day Cancelation" and the contractor may invoice minimum time scheduled according to the agreed upon rate.

APS OWNED INTERPRETATION HEADSET/EQUIPMENT

When the interpreter demonstrates the skills necessary to provide simultaneous interpretation our office provides the use of equipment for assignments requiring the simultaneous mode.

Interpretation equipment is the property of APS and can only be used for APS assignments. Contractors are authorized to use this equipment only for this purpose, in school sites or assignment addresses. Contractors are not allowed to use equipment for personal or Contractor's clients for personal business or gain. Violation of this directive will result in the immediate cancellation of Contractor's Price Agreement and legal actions may be taken.

- If a Contractor accepts an assignment with use of the equipment, the contractor needs to pick up the equipment at the Translation and Interpretation office. The contractor will be compensated one (1) hour for travel time (for picking up the equipment) as well as the time spent at the assignment. The additional hour charged must appear in the contractor's assignment log as a separate entry, underneath the original assignment.
- The Contractor may keep equipment for multiple assignments, with prior authorization from the office, that require equipment; thus not incurring additional trips to the Translation and Interpretation office. If the contractor keeps the equipment he/she may bill an additional hour if the assignment is after school hours (after 5PM). The additional hour charged should appear in the contractor's assignment log as a separate entry underneath the original assignment.
- It is the responsibility of the Contractor to make sure that the same number of devices that were given to the Contractor for the assignment is returned to the Translation and Interpretation Department. The Contractor will be responsible for any lost, damaged or stolen equipment.
- If there are any problems with the equipment (i.e. receiver equipment missing) on-site, the Contractor needs to notify the person in charge of the meeting immediately and the Translation and Interpretation Department and make all efforts to get the equipment back to the Translation and Interpretation Department within 48 hours.
- The Contractor must return the APS-owned Interpretation Headset/Equipment to the Translation and Interpretation Department within forty-eight (48) hours of the assignment unless prior authorization has been given by the Translation and Interpretation Coordinators to keep the equipment longer.

DAY AND EVENING INTERPRETATION ASSIGNMENTS

Day Assignments

• Interpretation assignments between the hours of 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. are considered Day Assignments and are invoiced according to the agreed upon hourly rate (with a minimum of an hour for remote interpretation or 2 hours for on-site assignments).

Day Assignments with equipment

• If a Contractor accepts an assignment with use of the equipment between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., the contractor needs to pick up the equipment at the Translation and Interpretation office. The contractor will be compensated one (1) hour for travel time (for picking up the equipment)

as well as the time spent at the assignment. The additional hour charged must appear in the contractor's assignment log as a separate entry underneath the original assignment.

Evening Assignments

• Interpretation assignments beginning after 5:00 are considered Evening Assignments and are invoiced according to the agreed upon hourly rate (with a minimum of an hour). An additional hour may be invoiced because the assignment is considered after hours. The additional hour charged must appear in the contractor's assignment log as a separate entry underneath the original assignment.

Evening Assignments with equipment

• Interpretation assignments beginning after 5:00 are considered Evening Assignments and are invoiced according to the agreed upon hourly rate (with a minimum of an hour). For these after hour assignments the contractor may invoice an additional hour for the use of equipment. The additional hour charged must appear in the contractor's assignment log as a separate entry underneath the original assignment.

INSURANCE

Contractors providing interpretation services shall, at their own expense, carry and maintain
minimum auto liability insurance as required by the state of New Mexico. A copy of the proof of
insurance will be kept in the contractor's file.

CONTRACTOR'S CODE OF ETHICS

The code of ethics is principally what differentiates professional from nonprofessional interpreters/translators. Ethics define boundaries, which protect a professional from being pressed into duties that are outside the scope of the contract, and they establish the parameters through which APS and parents can expect the interpreter/translator to work. A code of ethics also provides a standard by which a professional group operates.

For Interpreters

- Confidentiality Information obtained about students, families, or school personnel is not to be
 discussed outside the confines of the context in which the information was obtained. For example,
 the fact that the school psychologist reported to a parent through an interpreter that a student has a
 specific learning disability should not be discussed by the interpreter in the community or with
 anyone outside the scope and confines of the meeting in which the communication transpired.
- Accuracy Interpreters should faithfully render the message in such a way that all information is
 communicated accurately, according to meaning. In other words, there is to be no adding, omitting,
 or changing any portion of the communication by the interpreter during transmission. Neither should
 the interpreter provide unsolicited explanation or information. If specific terms or concepts cannot be
 communicated meaningfully, the parties involved should be informed so that adjustments can be
 made and the communication reformulated.
- **Completeness** Interpreters should faithfully render the message in its entirety, including expression, gestures, tone, and inflections used by the speaker. Interpreters may ask for reasonable repetitions to the speaker so all the message is rendered in its entirety.
- **Professionalism** Interpreters should conduct themselves in a professional manner: prepared, well dressed, punctual, courteous, and respectful.
- **Continuing Education** Ongoing skill development is an important part of this profession. Second language service providers should have the opportunity to attend training programs, conferences, participate in discussions and exchanges of information, and consult with other interpreters, translators, and professionals to further develop and enhance their skills. These opportunities should

serve to extend interpreters' and translators' knowledge of idiomatic expressions, dialects, accents, regionalisms, and technical terms in both languages.

- **Representation** The interpreter should not misrepresent his/her skills, qualifications, or certifications. Neither should he/she misrepresent the organization under which he/she is working.
- **Conflict of Interest** Interpreters should immediately disclose any conflict of interest as soon as it becomes evident. Furthermore, interpreters should respond within ethical boundaries to all situations and withdraw from any situation that would comprise them ethically.
- **Neutrality and Impartiality** Interpreters should remain neutral and impartial, refraining from expression of any bias, personal opinion, recommendations, or comments. Interpreters must make every effort not to take sides.
- Acceptance of Assignments Interpreters and translators should not accept tasks from school personnel which surpass their capabilities or training. It is important to be candid with school and district personnel when you feel unable to adequately complete an assignment. For example, a Vietnamese interpreter may speak both Vietnamese and English fluently but may not have the reading and written language skills to translate Exceptional Student Education English language documents into Vietnamese. Or, since Chinese is not a single language, a Chinese interpreter may perform well in Mandarin but be unable to interpret Cantonese. An interpreter may feel comfortable working in small group settings but not before large groups. Likewise, interpreters should not be expected to assist with administration of tests without previous training or experience; otherwise, results will be jeopardized.
- Cultural Competency Awareness Interpreters should practice cross cultural competency by taking into account cultural awareness when interpreting.

For translators - American Translators Association (ATA) Code of Ethics

- To convey meaning between people and cultures faithfully, accurately, and impartially.
- To hold in confidence any privileged and/or confidential information entrusted to us in the course of our work.
- To represent our qualifications, capabilities and responsibilities honestly and to work always within them.
- To enhance those capabilities at every opportunity by continuing education in language, subject field, and professional practice.
- To act collegially by sharing knowledge and experience.
- To define in advance by mutual agreement, and to abide by, the terms of all business transactions among ourselves and with others.
- To endeavor in good faith to resolve among ourselves any dispute that arises from our professional interactions.

HELPFUL HINTS FOR INTERPRETERS

 Make sure the Translation Office has your email address, current telephone, cell, and pager numbers.

- Introduce yourself to the person in charge of the meeting and the parent, letting her or him know that you are a District interpreter sent by our office.
- For liability and insurance reasons, do not transport parents and/or students.
- When going to a school for an interpretation assignment, always give yourself extra time to first sign in at the main office.
- Have language dictionary, a pen, and a notepad to take notes ready
- Check your equipment if you do simultaneous interpretation.
- Check to see if your remote interpretation software platforms (zoom, google meets, etc) have the most recent updates installed.
- If you have trouble entering a remote meeting, please try to dial in along with calling the requester's phone number. If that fails, contact our office at translate@aps.edu and we can help you.
- Check in advance and before going to the assignment, directions on how to get to the assigned location.
- If you encounter any problem while getting to your assignment (e.g. Late because of traffic, inability due to illness, trouble finding the location or getting lost, any emergency, etc.) contact the Translation/Interpretation Office directly. Do not call the school or any staff members. Our office will assist and will make final determination.
- If questions arise during an assignment, ask the school personnel questions for clarification.
- Review key concepts, phrases, and terms with the school personnel.
- Review with the school personnel any tests or special forms to be used.
- Sit next to the parents for whom you are interpreting (unless you have interpretation equipment that allows you to sit away from the group).
- Once all participants are present, feel free to set the following norms since some people may not have any prior experience with an interpreter:
 - A person should limit his/her speech to no more than two or three sentences at a time so you
 may interpret.
 - Only one person should speak at a time (no interruptions or overlapping conversations).
 - o In the course of the meeting, you may have to remind the participants of these rules.
- Inform the school personnel you are assisting if any words or concepts are not translatable.
- Conveying cultural information Where cultural factors may be present, and in order to facilitate the
 communication between parties, interpreters may provide cultural information to the school
 personnel or parents, withholding assumptions or stereotypes, and allow the participants to
 determine the use of information.
- Write down important information that you will need to share with the school personnel after the session.
- Be patient with the parent, student, and the school personnel.

- If you are asked and are able to return for an <u>unfinished</u> meeting/IEP, please remind the school to call the Translation and Interpretation office to formalize the request. If the school personnel request further services (unrelated to the original assignment) from you, please remind them to call the Translation and Interpretation office first, and we will try to honor their request as long as we can maintain a balanced distribution of assignments among our interpreters.
- Due to tight scheduling, sometimes, you may need to leave an assignment that has gone longer than expected in order to arrive at your next assignment on time. In these situations, notify the school personal of your schedule and at what time you need to leave at the beginning of the meeting. When the time arrives politely leave.
- If an assignment goes beyond the estimated end time and you have the time, stay and finish the meeting. If the meeting went more than 30 minutes past the estimated end time notify the Translation/Interpretation office via phone or email after the meeting is concluded so our office updates our database system.
- If you are unavailable for a long period of time or your availability changes, please advise our office in advance.

HELPFUL HINTS FOR TRANSLATORS

- Abide to the Code of Ethics for Translators suggested by ATA
- Use the Glossary provided by the Translation/Interpretation Office as a tool and guide for the translations.
- Make sure the Translation/Interpretation Office has your current email address, telephone, cell, and pager numbers.
- Follow the Translation/Interpretation Office's procedures when receiving translation requests (acknowledging receipt of the assigned translation, giving estimated return date for the translation unless a specific deadline is given to you by our office, providing the number of words/pages you are planning to charge when submitting your translation, etc.)
- If you have any question regarding the assigned translation, contact the Translation/ Interpretation Office. Do not contact any of our schools or school staff members.
- Notify the coordinators of the Translation/Interpretation Office as soon as possible if you cannot accept a specific assignment.
- Notify the Translation/Interpretation Office if you encounter an issue with the original request, if it is not clear, if you detect errors or something that does not make sense in the original document.
- Notify in advance to the Translation/Interpretation Office if you are unable to provide services for a short or long period of time.

EXPECTATIONS FOR CONTRACTORS

- Contractors should abide to the Code of Ethics for Interpreters/Translators
- Contractors should conduct themselves in a professional manner: prepared, well dressed, courteous, respectful, and punctual (punctual in this case means in the assigned room not just in the school site).

- Contractors should continue to acquire on-going skill development to maintain and improve interpreting/translating skills.
- Contractors should commit to an assignment once it has been accepted (unless an unmanageable situation or an emergency arises).
- Contractors should advise our office in advance if your availability fluctuates or changes.
- Contractors should notify the Translation/Interpretation Office of any unusual situation at a school and/or with the assignment.
- Contractors should provide precise and accurate invoices. The coordinators will periodically and randomly verify start and end times for interpreting assignments. Any unexplained discrepancies may lead to termination of the contract.
- Contractors should contact the Translation/Interpretation office directly. Do not contact the schools or school staff members.

LOOKING AHEAD

The work of the school is more effective when parents play an active role. Good communication between the school and the home is an essential ingredient to help parents become active participants. For non-English speaking parents, the Translation/Interpretation office is the linguistic and cultural bridge that allows parents and school personnel to communicate with and understand each other.

With more than 20 years of experience the Translation and Interpretation Office has been successful in providing such services. We will continue offering high quality services, thereby contributing to the enhancement of the Albuquerque Public Schools educational system. We will strive to make any and all improvements as needed. Finally, we will maintain our association with interpreters and translators who are professional and reliable and provide excellent services.

We thank all of our Interpreters and Translators for your services. The Translation/Interpretation Office has an open door policy and believes in open communication. Please feel free and confident that we will do our best and use all of our resources to work with all of you to maintain and build a good team so that we may continue providing excellent service to our District and community.

Interpretation Log

APS Interpretation Log

Interpretation Services Provided by: Service Period (Month and Year of service):

PO Number:

Vendor Number:

NS - No Show SDCX - Same Day Cancellation

				Cancellation	
Date of	Start	End	Location (name of	NS or SDCX (write it	
Assignment	Time	Time	School or Dept)	down if applies)	Hours
· ·			• ,	,	0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
					0:00
				TOTAL HOURS	0:00
				Hours X Rate	\$0.00
				% Tax (if applicable)	\$0.00
				Total Net	\$0.00

Attachment B Translation Log

APS TRANSLATION LOG

Translation Services Provided by:

Service Period (Month and Year of service):

PO Number:

Vendor Number:

School/Dept.	Title or Subject of	Name School	<u>Date of</u>	<u># of</u>
<u>Name</u>	document	Staff/Dept. Member	request	Words/Pgs

Total Number of Words

[input t ra	Rate per Word/Page	
\$0.	Gross Amount	\$0.
[input the rate] \$0.	% Tax (if applicable)	\$0
\$0.	Total Net	\$0.

0.00

Attachment C

Invoice

Contractor's Name:

[Language] Translator and/or Interpreter

Address:

Phone:

Email address:

Vendor #:

PO #:

MA # (if applicable):

6400 Uptown Blvd NE, Albuquerque NM 87110

Phone: 881-9429 ext 2 Fax: 505-872-8862

INVOICE

Invoice No.:

Invoice Date: / /

Terms: 30-45 days

Invoiced to: APS Translation/Interpretation

Services

INVOIC	INVOICE DETAIL				
Item #	Qty.	Work Item Description	Amount		
		Interpretation Services for the month of:	\$		
		Rate per hour: \$ / hour			
		Translation Services for the month of:	\$		
		Rate per word or page: \$ /word or page			
		Sub Total	\$		
		Tax (if applicable)	\$		
		Total Invoice	\$		
		Amount Paid			
		Amount Due	\$		
NOTES	:				